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August 6 , 2014 

 

 
Ms. Sophia L Habl Mitchell 
Environmental Project Manager 
Sophia Mitchell & Associates, LLC 
PO Box 1700 
Gualala, CA 95445 

Re: San Marcos Highlands Specific Plan Amendment Project - City of San Marcos 

Dear Ms. Habl Mitchell, 

The Vista Unified School District (District) has asked Eric Hall & Associates to respond to your 
request for information for the environmental review of the San Marcos Highlands Specific Plan 
Amendment project for the City of San Marcos. 

The District includes portions of the City of Oceanside, the City of Vista, the City of San Marcos 
and portions of the unincorporated area in the County of San Diego.  The District covers 39 square 
miles, operates 35 schools and alternative and adult education centers, educates 22,348 students 
and manages an annual general fund budget in excess of $213 million. 

The District encourages schools of choice offering students and parents a variety of options 
relative to the education setting, program offering and alternatives. 

The District has reviewed your request for information dated July 22, 2014 and provides the 
following response to your questions and inquiry. 

1. Please identify which District schools (elementary, middle, and high schools) 
serve the project area?  The project as proposed would be currently served by 
the Rancho Buena Vista High School, Rancho Minerva Middle School, and Monte 
Vista Elementary School 

2. Please provide the current student enrollment and capacity statistics for the 
schools that serve the project area. 

a. Rancho Buena Vista High School: enrollment of 2,606, capacity of 3,141 
b. Rancho Minerva Middle School: enrollment of 918, capacity of 956 
c. Monte Vista Elementary School: enrollment of 655, capacity of 764 

Two of the three schools that will serve the project, Rancho Buena Vista High School and Monte 
Vista Elementary School, have a significant percentage of their capacity in portable classrooms – 
58% and 62% respectively.  The capacity in portable classrooms is in excess of the State and 
District standards of 25% of portable capacity. 

While the capacity and enrollment information provided above appear to suggest that there is 
capacity to accommodate the project, a shortage of classroom space exists due specifically to the 
high percentage of portable classrooms at those two schools.  Furthermore, the District is facing a 
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capacity shortage based upon the analysis and calculation displayed in the table below. 

 

 

Unified School District Capacity and Enrollment 

School 
Level 

Facilities 
Capacity 

CBEDS 
Enrollment 

Excess/(Shortage) of 
Capacity 

Elementary 
Schools 

10,006 10,473 (467) 

Middle Schools 3,643 4,784 (1,141) 

High Schools 5,567 7,091 (1,524) 

Total 19,216 22,348 (3,132) 

 
 

 
3. Is existing school capacity within the District adequate to meet the current 

student population?  Based upon the enrollment and capacity provided in number 
2 above, capacity exists primarily in portable classrooms;  but adequate permanent 
classroom space does not exist to serve the project. 

4. Does the District have student generation rates (grades K-12) for residential land 
uses?  The District utilizes the statewide student yield factors of 0.7 students per dwelling 
unit.  The District's facility capacity was calculated by loading the District's 
instructional classrooms at the Office of Public School Construction (OPSC) loading 
standards of 25:1 for grades K-6, 27:1 for grades 7-12, 9:1 for severe special education 
students and 13:1 for non-severe special education students. 

5. Are there any improvements or additions planned for District schools that serve 
the project area?  As was indicated in our letter dated August 16, 2013, the District 
continues to update its Long Range Facilities Master Plan.  The District completed a 
needs assessment of all of the district facilities and identified improvements 
necessary in technology, safety and security, site and school modernization, support 
spaces and athletic fields and play areas.  The schools that will serve this project 
continue to be in need of a number of extensive improvements.  A comprehensive list of 
improvements needed at each of the schools impacted by the project should have been 
sent to you as part of our last correspondence with you in August, 2013 in the form of a 
set of school summary profiles. 

6. Is the District utilizing any busing programs and/or portable classrooms to 
accommodate overcrowded schools?  As was indicated to you in our last 
communication, the District does not provide either a "home to school" or a shuttle 
service to transport students.  It will be  necessary for the students generated from 
the project to find their own way to District schools without transportation being provided 
by the District. 
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With respect to portable classrooms, the District has an extensive inventory of portable 
classrooms.  Portable classrooms provide the District with 52% of the total classroom 
capacity. Portable inventory for the subject schools is as follows: 

a) Rancho Buena Vista High School: 58% portable 
b) Rancho Minerva Middle School:  0.05% portable 
c) Monte Vista Elementary School:  62% portable 

7. Do you have any recommendations that might help reduce any significant 
potential impacts to the Vista Unified School District?  The District has limited 
classroom space as illustrated by the information proved in this reply.  The District 
schools serving the project area are in need of significant improvements as addressed 
in our previous communiqué dated August 16, 2013.  Additionally, the project is far 
removed from the nearest schools serving the project.  The current infrastructure is 
limited; and, streets and roads are not adequate to provide direct access to District 
schools 

8. Are there any VUSD impact fees that the project will be subject to?  The District 
completed a Developer Fee Justification Study conducted by EH&A.  The study can 
be found on the District website here.  The study provides data to satisfy this 
question.  Of note are the costs of providing facilities.  The facilities costs for new 
residential development have been calculated to be $26.82 to $32.77 per square foot.  
The District is currently collecting the statutory developer fee of $3.20 per square foot. 

In summary the San Marcos Highlands project will negatively affect the Vista Unified School 
District and the educational environment.  The District requests that the environmental document 
prepared for this project identify the need for school facilities improvements, transportation 
assistance and funding for facilities in excess of the statutory developer fees to mitigate the 
environmental impact of the project on the District.  The District requests that the developer work 
closely with the District to mitigate the impacts of this project on the District's ability to adequately 
provide transportation and school facilities for the students it serves. 

We look forward to discussing this project further with you, the developer and the City of San 
Marcos. 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 
 

Eric J. Hall, President 
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